
WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING OF THE LOWER TOWNSHIP COUNCIL

August 15, 2011  - 7:00 P.M.

Meeting called to order.
Opening Announcement
Pledge of Allegiance & Moment of Silence
Roll Call & Determination of Quorum

Work Session  
Review of Municipal Best Practices Checklist 
Solicitor’s Report Re: Collective Bargaining Agreements & 3rd party input
Manager’s Report
Review of Consent & Regular Agenda Items

Consent Agenda
Approval of Minutes August 1, 2011
Res. #2011-225 Payment of Vouchers, $3,999,764.18
Res. #2011-226 Authorization to Cancel General Ledger Balances (cancelling Smart Growth Grant Receivable

balance of $22,500 - does not impact budget)
Res. #2011-227 Renewal of Commercial Excavation (Gravel Pit) Licenses for A & H Mining & Recycling LLC

(Annual renewal 3 existing licenses - Cape Atlantic Soil Conservation Certification received)
Res. #2011-228 Cancellation of 2011 Property Tax (2 applicants approved as 100% totally disabled - eligible for tax

exemption - 1 applicant being refunding 1st half taxes paid)
Res. #2011-229 Refund of Taxes (2 properties with overpayments requested to be refunded)
Res. #2011-230 Resolution Approving Project Proposal Between Hatch Mott MacDonald and the township of Lower

for Engineering Services Related to Beach Drive Public Access Improvements ($1750 - Request &
coordinate NJDEP Pre-application meeting at the project site - prepare photos, concept plan with
general location of proposed access and discuss meeting results with Township)

Res. #2011-231 Authorization for Number One Taxi, LLC to Transfer Taxi License To Another Vehicle (replaced
one vehicle with another)

Res. #2011-232 Approval of Change Order #1 for S.J. Energy Plus (Increase due to prevailing wage corrections,
omission of gas line installation pricing and various sensors by S.J. Energy Plus, total increase of
$11,016.78)

Res. #2011-233 Issuance Ice Cream Salesman License for the Year 2011 to Fudgy  Wudgy Ice Cream (Issuance of
additional salesman’s license)

Res. #2011-234 Joining the National Moment of Remembrance of the 10th Anniversary of September 11th 
Res. #2011-235 Resolution Amending Resolution #2011-10, Entitled “Confirmation of Officials for Joint Insurance

Fund and Municipal Excess Liability Fund” (Resolution replacing Brian Marker with Jason Dilworth
as the Township’s Safety Coordinator for the Joint Insurance Fund.)

Res. #2011-236 Resolution Opposing S-2795 and A-3835, Concerning Enforcement Responsibility of State
Housing Code under the “Hotel and Multiple Dwelling Law” (The bill, if enacted, would decrease
municipal revenues and take away local control over inspection of multiple dwellings.)

Res. #2011-237 Authorizing Personnel Policy Manual Update (Updating Use of Township Vehicle Policy to ensure
compliance with IRS publication 15B, requiring the Twp. establish a daily commute value to be
included on the W-2 for those employees assigned to take a Township home) 

Res. #2011-238 Certification of Best Practices Inventory (Resolution stating the Council has reviewed the Best
Practices Checklist prepared by the CFO & authorizing it’s submission to the State)

Res. #2011-239 Approval of Cold Spring Presbyterian Church’s Application to Conduct a Flea Market (September
3, rain date Sept. 10)



Ord.  #2011-15 An Ordinance Amending Chapter Seven Entitled “Traffic” of the Code of the Township of Lower, 1st

rdg. - (Ordinance to include both sides of Seashore Road Beginning at the point 725 feet north of
Tabernacle and continue 765 feet northerly therefrom (the area of the curve near Sunset Towing & S & E
Auto Repair) and the southbound side of Town Bank Road along St. John of God to the No
Stopping/Standing on Saturdays & Sundays schedule of the Traffic) 2nd rdg. & public hearing  Sept. 7 

Regular Agenda
Ord. #2011-16 An Ordinance Authorizing Execution of a Conveyance by Quit Claim Deed of Certain Potential

Property Interests to the Lower Township Rescue Squad in Connection With Providing Emergency
First Aid Services to the Township of Lower, 1st rdg (This ordinance allows for execution of a quit
claim deed of certain land &  conveying any Township interest to the Lower Twp. Rescue Squad to
be used in connection with the provision of emergency first aid service to the citizens of the
township.)  2nd rdg & public hrg Sept. 7th

Administrative Reports
Tax Collector Certification of Mailing of Tax Bills
Bond Counsel Certificate of Determination & Award - Note Sale $2,125,000.00 @ 1.01% 
July Reports Animal Control, Construction Official, Dog Licensing, Municipal Clerk, Municipal Court, Police, Tax

Collector, Treasurer/CFO, Vital Statistics  

Council Comments

Call to the Public

Adjournment

PUBLIC INFORMATION

Family Movie Nights begins Wednesday August 10 and continues each Wednesday through August - 8
p.m. outside of the Recreation Center - (inside if weather is bad) bring a blanket or chair - refreshments
available for purchase)

Movie schedule:  August 17 Toy Story, August 24 Tangled & August 31 Megamind
                         
Community Blood Drive - August 22nd - 10 a.m. to 4 p.m.- Township Hall - Please take an hour of your
time to come in, be cool, help save a life.  All presenting donors will receive a coupon for a free box of
chocolates.  

LOWER TOWNSHIP BLOOD DRIVE - MONDAY AUGUST 22, 2011 - 10 AM TO 4 PM - Sign up at Township Hall or call
886-2005 ext. 113

ANNUAL  DOG LICENSES DUE.  Any dog over 6 months, must be licensed.  Proof of rabies vaccination required.  If
spayed/neutered, vet certificate required. Fee $7.20 if not spayed/neutered and $4.20 if spayed/neutered 

YARD SALE LICENSES - Required for all yard, sales, attic sales, garage sales etc.  Permit fee $5.00 for two
consecutive days and choice of rain date.  Three permits permitted per year to a residence/person.  

ALL RENTAL PROPERTIES REQUIRE LICENSE - All rentals, commercial or residential, whether yearly, seasonal or
weekly require a mercantile license and registration and inspection by the Bureau of Fire Safety.  For more
information or applications call  886-2005 or 889-0404.



Best Practices Worksheet CY 2012

0505
Question  Answer Comments

General Management
1

Has your municipality adopted a pay‐to‐play ordinance pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11‐51? 
This law allows the municipality and its agencies to prohibit the award of public 
contracts to business entities that have made certain campaign contributions 
exceeding $300 and to limit the contributions that the holders of a contract can make 
during the term of a contract to $300. A model ordinance concerning pay‐to‐play can 
be found at: www.nj.gov/dca/lgs/muniaid/pay_to_play_ordinance‐contractor.doc

Yes

2
Did your municipality evaluate and/or enter into at least one new shared service or 
cooperative agreement in 2010, outside of joining cooperative purchasing system?

Yes

3 Does your municipality maintain an up‐to‐date municipal website containing, but not 
limited to: past three years adopted budgets; and the current year proposed budget 
including the full adopted budget for current year when approved by the governing 
body; most recent annual financial statements and audits; notification(s) for 
solicitation of Bids and RFPs; employee contact information; and meeting dates, 
minutes and agendas for the governing body, planning board, board of adjustment and 
all commissions?

Yes

4 Does your municipality’s legal counsel review procurement specifications and sign off 
on all major professional service contracts before the documents are signed?

N/A
QPA reviews all contracts. Solicitor 
reviews when necessary, also 

5 Does your municipality have an ongoing policy cross referencing the submittal of 
Certificates of Occupancy from the Construction Official to the Tax Assessor?

Yes

6 Is your municipality’s computer information backed up regularly, pursuant to a written 
backup policy and is data stored offsite?

Yes

7 Does your municipality require its elected officials to attend basic courses on 
responsibilities and obligations in local government (i.e. budgeting, policy setting, local 
government contracting, risk management, and compliance with the Open Public 
Records Act)?  

No

8 If your municipality assigns employees with vehicles that can be taken home after work 
hours, is there a written policy in place to prohibit personal use and does that policy 
ensure that the commuting miles are reflected in employee W‐2s?

Yes

Lower Township (Cape May)



Best Practices Worksheet CY 2012

0505
Question  Answer Comments

Lower Township (Cape May)

9 Does your municipality sell personal property (fire trucks, road equipment, confiscated 
items, etc.) through an approved online auction system to broaden the market area for 
increased revenue?

Yes

10 Are ordinances codified on an annual basis and made available electronically and/or in 
an existing ordinance book for the public?

Yes

11 Has your municipality established an “Absence from Meetings Policy” for elected 
officials and appointed board members?

Prospective

Financial Standards
1 Does your municipality’s newly (within the last six months) negotiated public employee 

contracts refrain from increasing base salary items by more than an average of two 
(2%) percent annually over the aggregate amount expended in the final year of the 
previous contract?

N/A All contracts expire 12/2011

2
Is there a system of checks and balances over the purchasing and disbursement 
functions, including payroll (e.g., the same employee who prepares the checks also 
reconciles the bank account would not be a proper system of checks and balances)?

Yes

3
Does your municipality have written procedures pertaining to cash receipts and cash 
disbursements including but not limited to:  receiving, recording and preparing 
deposits for cash receipts; and processing, reviewing, and approving disbursements?

Yes

4 Does management (department heads) review and approve all payroll disbursements, 
invoices, and purchase orders before final approval of the governing body by 
resolution?

Yes

5 Are bank statements and related canceled checks and validated deposit slips, reviewed 
and reconciled monthly to the general ledger balances?

Yes

6 Are contracts for services over the pay‐to‐play threshold of $17,500 awarded using 
bids or a fair and open process?

Yes Exception: Professional Services

7 Does your municipality maintain all documentation regarding bids including but not 
limited to:  notices to potential bidders that include the plans, specifications, and 
contracts; documentation that the bids were properly advertised; and bid opening 
documentation that include the submitted bids, bid tabulation sheet, and indication of 
which bid was accepted?

Yes



Best Practices Worksheet CY 2012

0505
Question  Answer Comments

Lower Township (Cape May)

8 Does your municipality perform an audit of your utility (telephone, fax, electric meters) 
accounts at least once every three years to ensure that inactive accounts are 
cancelled?

Yes



Best Practices Worksheet CY 2012

0505
Question  Answer Comments

Lower Township (Cape May)

Budget Preparation & Presentation
1 Has your governing body reviewed the municipality’s annual financial statement with 

particular emphasis on surplus generation and usage, tax collection rates (including the 
status of tax liens), and delinquent tax collection statements?

Yes

2 Did your municipality prepare a five (5) year summary showing the amount of surplus 
anticipated and the percentage of the budget that this represents?  

Yes

3 Does your municipal CFO or auditor evaluate your capital balances annually to review 
and cancel unspent funds at the closure of capital projects?

Yes

4 Do elected officials receive quarterly (or more frequent) reports on the status of all 
budget revenues and appropriations as they correspond to the annual adopted 
budget?

Yes

5 Was a budget history and projection showing three years of history prepared in a 
“Viewer Friendly” style for public use?

Yes

Health Insurance
1 If your municipality does not participate in the State Health Benefits Plan (SHBP), a 

joint insurance fund (JIF), or a healthcare insurance fund (HIF), have competitive 
proposals for insurance been solicited in the last three years?

N/A Member NJSHB

2 If your municipality is a member of the SHBP, have you transitioned from Chapter 88 
(lifelong retirement benefits & Medicare Part B payouts) to Chapter 48 (healthcare 
cafeteria and select cost‐saving provisions for all current and future employees)? 
N.J.S.A. 52:14‐17.38(b1) to 52:14‐17.38 (b2)

Yes

3 Does your municipality perform an annual review of health benefit covered lives in an 
effort to delete employees, spouses or dependents who should no longer be receiving 
coverage?

Yes

4 Do your municipal firefighters receive annual heart screening in conformance with 
NFPA Standard 1582, Chapter 7.4‐7.7?

N/A All firefighters are volunteer.



Best Practices Worksheet CY 2012

0505
Question  Answer Comments

Lower Township (Cape May)

Personnel
1 Does your municipality make available to the public free of charge, either through an 

internet posting or on‐site review, documents that show the current salaries of all 
personnel and additional documents that would allow the public to understand how 
your municipality’s aggregate salaries have changed over a three year period?

Yes

2 Has your municipality, consistent with N.J.S.A. 34:13A‐8.2, filed a copy of all negotiated 
public employee contracts with the Public Employment Relations Commission, or will 
your municipality bring itself into compliance by having all contracts emailed to 
contracts@perc.state.nj.us.

Yes

3
Are all applicants and employees hired, promoted and retrained in accordance with 
established equal employment opportunity (EEO) and non‐discrimination policies?

Yes

4 Does your municipality limit health benefits to full‐time (35 or more hours weekly), 
employees and exclude from coverage all part‐time employees, elected or appointed 
officials?

Yes

5 Are standardized absentee forms completed and filed for all employee absences? Yes
6

Are formal records maintained by your Personnel Department (Human Resources 
office) to account for vacation and sick leave earned and taken by all employees?

Yes

7 Does supervisory staff review and approve employee time and attendance reports 
before submitting to management?

Yes

8 Does your municipality limit the carry forward of accrued vacation time to no more 
than one year’s worth of such time (meaning no employee hired after the effective 
date of the limitation policy can have more than two (2) years of vacation time on the 
books in any given year)?

Yes

9 Does the municipal governing body approve all payments of 
accumulated/uncompensated absence benefits?

Yes

10 Does your municipality’s personnel manual include policies covering the use of 
municipal computers, including internet/e‐mail use?

Yes

11 Does your municipality have a transitional duty program (light duty) to encourage 
employees out on workers compensation to return to work?

Yes

12 Does your municipality provide annual employment practice liability training for 
elected officials, managers, administrators, department heads and supervisors?

Yes



Best Practices Worksheet CY 2012

0505
Question  Answer Comments

Lower Township (Cape May)

Public Safety
1 Does your municipality have an emergency management plan that is updated bi‐

annually and verified yearly through practical exercises and written reports distributed 
to all affected parties (police, fire, OEM, etc.) as required pursuant to L.1989, c.222, 
s.20?

Yes

2 Is your municipality’s police department accredited by the Commission on 
Accreditation of Law Enforcement Agencies, Inc. (CALEA), or have senior officers had 
advanced training through professional agencies/academies?

Yes

3
Are all required hazard‐use inspections and reports performed in accordance with 
state standards, needed‐relevant information disseminated to emergency response 
organizations and a copy of the report sent to local fire and police agencies?

Yes

4 Does your municipality have formal written mutual aid agreements for all emergency 
response organizations?

Yes

5 Does your municipality have a formal procedure to ensure that all park and recreation 
facilities are inspected/assessed periodically to determine whether proper 
maintenance is being done to ensure the safety of the using public?

Yes

Energy
1 Has your municipality conducted an energy audit within the last three years to 

evaluate whether the energy consumption (i.e. heating, lighting, ventilation and air 
conditioning) of municipal facilities can be reduced?

Yes

2 If your municipality issues published or posted newsletters to its residents, did such 
publications promote recycling efforts and solid waste management in compliance 
with the storm water regulations? N.J.A.C. 7:8 et seq.

Yes



Best Practices Worksheet CY 2012

0505
Question  Answer Comments

Lower Township (Cape May)

Municipal/School Relations
1 Has your municipality held or scheduled a “Joint Yearly Open Public Meeting” between 

the local school board(s) and the governing body to discuss community needs, shared 
services, and the school and municipal budgets?

No

2 Do you share playing fields, recreation services, and/or equipment with the local 
board(s) of education?

Yes

3 Has your municipality entered into any shared services with local board(s) of education 
pertaining to maintaining of fields, sharing of equipment, purchasing of gasoline, snow 
plowing, etc.?

Yes

Select 0
Yes 43
No 2
N/A 4
Prospective 1
Total Answered: 50

Score (Yes + N/A + Prospective) 48
Score % 96%
Percent Withheld 0%

Chief Financial Officer Completion Certification:



DRAFT DRAFT

DRAFT DRAFT

DRAFT DRAFT

TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STATE OF NEW JERSEY

ORDINANCE #2011-17

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 3, ADMINISTRATION OF
GOVERNMENT, OF THE CODE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LOWER

WHEREAS, the Council has determined it would be appropriate and in the best
interest of good government to formally establish policies for the governing body which may
be amended from time to time as necessary.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED as follows:

SECTION 1.  Section 3-8, Powers and duties of Township Council, B (4) Policy  is hereby amended with
the following addition.

(d)  Attendance Policy
a.  The Mayor &  Councilmembers are expected to attend regular and special meetings

at the time and place where said meetings are held and for the entirety of each
meeting.  If attendance is not possible, notification is to be made to the Township
Manager and the Township Clerk prior to the scheduled meeting.

b. Attendance shall be taken at all meetings and reflected in the minutes of all meetings
which will subsequently be posted to the Township’s website.

(e) Training
a.  Newly elected members of Council are strongly encouraged to complete the Rutgers

University Course for Newly Elected Officials during the first year of their term and all
members of Council are encouraged to continue their municipal government
education by completing the courses necessary to complete the Municipal elected
Officials Certificate Program offered by the Edward J. Bloustein School of Planning &
Public Policy at The Rutgers Center for Government Service or any comparable
program offered through the New Jersey League of Municipalities.

b. Records of all courses taken shall be furnished to the Municipal Clerk and shall be
available for public inspection.  The Township shall pay for all tuition costs and  travel
expense incurred by the member of Council in completing these courses upon
providing adequate documentation to substantiate the expenses.

(f) Email Communications 
a. Email communications should, as far as practicable, not include an effective majority

of the governing body and should never include an effective majority of the governing
body where discussion of information related to the business of the Township is
involved.

b. Where email communications do include an effective majority of the governing body,
such communications should almost universally not include any request for
information in response. The provision of information to the entire governing body
(e.g. copies of agendas, etc.) should specifically indicate that there should be no
email reply or other communication contrary to the OPMA.



DRAFT DRAFT

DRAFT DRAFT

DRAFT DRAFT

c. In the rare instance where a response is requested, such request must not involve
any decision making or deliberative function of the governing body or otherwise
address Township business that is subject to the OPMA and shall not be made to the
entire list of email addressees, so that even the appearance of impropriety may be
avoided. Instances such as this should be extremely rare and should only be
informational. (E.g. “I am attending the seminar on the 21st, if anyone else is going or
wants information, please let me know.”)Substantive matters of public business must
never be the subjects of an email exchange between or among an effective majority
of the governing body. Utilizing a third party, such as the Clerk, does not change the
requirements of the OPMA.

d. “Rolling” email conversations must also be avoided.  One member of the governing
body or a third party may not contact other members via email individually to
successively discuss or gain opinions on an item of Township business. This  applies
to other forms of electronic communications as well.

.
SECTION 2.  All other Ordinances in conflict or inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed, to

the extent of such conflict or inconsistency.

SECTION 3. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance be declared
unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the remaining portions of this Ordinance shall not be affected thereby and
shall remain in full force and effect, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be
severable.

SECTION 4. Upon final passage and publication according to law, a copy of this Ordinance shall forthwith be
certified by an appropriate officer of the Township of Lower.

SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall take effect twenty (20) days after final passage and publication as
provided by law provided. 

_______________________________
Thomas Conrad, Councilman

_______________________________
Erik K. Simonsen, Councilman

Attest:                                          

_______________________________
Glenn Douglass, Councilman

_______________________________
Kevin Lare, Deputy Mayor

Adopted:                               

                                                                
Michael Beck, Mayor



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 1, 2011

The regular meeting of the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of
New Jersey was held on August 1, 2011 at 7:00 p.m. in the meeting room of the Township Hall, 2600
Bayshore Road, Villas, New Jersey.

The Clerk announced that the meeting was being held in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act
and that adequate notice of the meeting had been provided according to law.

The following members of Council were present for roll call taken by the Clerk:

Councilmember Thomas Conrad
Councilmember Erik Simonsen

Councilmember Glenn Douglass
Deputy Mayor Kevin Lare

Mayor Michael Beck

Also present: William Blaney, Solicitor, Michael Voll, Manager and Asst. Clerk Horwath

Work Session
                                                                           
                                                           Retirement of Officer Art Mason
Mayor Beck said Officer Mason was retiring and congratulated him.  He asked the Chief to say a few
word.
Chief Marker said he had served the community well and was proud he could now retire and enjoy the
things he like to do.  He had been with the department since 1988 and worked his way to the detective
bureau.    He said he would be missed by the department as well as the community.

Review of Consent and Regular Agenda Items
Councilmember Conrad said Resolution #2011-217 would be tabled; it needed to be approved by the Fire
Bureau Commissioners.  Councilmember Simonsen seconded the motion.  The resolution was tabled by
the following roll call vote:  Councilmember Conrad, “yes”, Councilmember Simonsen, “yes”,
Councilmember Douglass, “yes”, Deputy Mayor Lare, “yes”, Mayor Beck, “yes”.

Public Questions on Consent Agenda and/or Regular Agenda Items
There was no public comment on the consent agenda.

Consent Agenda
Approval of Minutes July 18, 2011
Res. #2011-205 Payment of Vouchers, $1,846,968.89
Res. #2011-206 Ratification of Addendum to Contract Between Lower Township Supervisor’s

Union & the Township of Lower (This resolution adds the title of General
Supervisor of Public Works to the list of positions covered by the Supervisor’s
Union in accordance with the Salary Ord. adopted July 6)

Res. #2011-207 Purchase of Off- Duty Weapon (Ed Donohue) (Authorizing the retired Chief to
purchase his handgun based on the fair market value of $200 as quoted by

Page 1



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 1, 2011

Lawman Supply Co.)
Res. #2011-208 Authorization for Aart’s Transportation Services to Transfer Taxi License From

2001 Dodge Caravan to 2001 Grand Dodge Caravan (replacing one vehicle with
another vehicle)

Res. #2011-209 Resolution Rescinding Resolutions #2011-194 and Authorizing Public Facilities
Grant Application for $400,000, Various ADA  Improvements (Original
resolution was for wrong amount, applying for $400,000 instead of $500,000)

Res. #2011-210 Authorizing Pay Out of Terminal Leave  (E. Christensen resigned - pay for
unused vacation & personal time prorated to date of resignation)

Res. #2011-211 Authorizing Pay Out of Terminal Leave (A. Mason retiring from Police - 
$38,618.14)

Res. #2011-212 Cancellation of 2011 Taxes (Applicant approved as 100% totally disabled by
Dept of Veteran’s Affairs which now exempts them from property taxes)

Res. #2011-213 Insertion of Special Item of Revenue Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87, Chapter 159
($4,400.00 Over the Limit Under Arrest)

Res. #2011-214 Application for 2012 Drug Enforcement and Demand Reduction (DEDR) Grant
Funds (Annual application for Municipal  Alliance Committee)

Res. #2011-215 Authorization for Waiver of Fees for Good Samaritan Baptist Church Associated
With Their Use Variance & Minor Site Plan Applications (The church is seeking
the variance to allow them to sell a residential dwelling located on their church
campus)

Res. #2011-216 Certification of Lot Clearing Charges to the Tax Collector (resolution authorizing
the cost of clearing/cleaning properties and administration fee ($500 each) not in
compliance with the Property Maintenance Code to be placed as a lien against
the property - Total for all 21 properties - $16,793.57)

Res. #2011-218 Resolution Approving Project Proposal Amendment Between Hatch Mott
Macdonald and the Township for Additional Engineering Services Roof
Replacement and Related Work at the Recreation Center (Adding up to an
additional $7000 in engineering services fees to be deducted from the final
payment to the contractor doing the roof replacement at the Recreation Center.

Res #2011-219 Approval of Change Order No 2 for Roof Replacement & Related Work at the
Recreation Center (Reducing contract amount by $2,084 for clean up and lost
wages due to water damage sustained during project.  This is in addition to the
reduction for additional engineering costs)

Councilmember Douglass motioned to adopt the consent agenda, seconded by Councilmember Conrad.
The consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad, “yes”,
Councilmember Simonsen, “yes”, Councilmember Douglass, “yes”, Deputy Mayor Lare, “yes”, Mayor
Beck, “yes”.

                                           Regular Agenda
Res. #2011-220 Authorization for Waiver of Fees for Lower Township Rescue Squad Associated

with Minor Site Plan, Use Variance & Hardship Variance (Estimated application
fees to be waived $1200)

Page 2



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 1, 2011

Maureen Cerrato of Cardinal Avenue said in this economic climate couldn’t the Township use the
$1,150.00 fee they were waiving.  She said other institutions in the past had received a waiver.  She said
she wondered if those other institutions had received the same consideration as the Rescue Squad had.  
Mrs. Cerrato asked when was enough for the Rescue Squad that was a paid organization.  She said the
letter Mr. Corrado presented to Council was filled with untruths.  She said the lot was never a parking lot
and where was the variance to show that it was a parking lot.  She said why was the Township showing
favor to an organization that consistently did what they wanted to do. 
Deputy Mayor Lare motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember Douglass.  The
resolution was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad, “abstain”,
Councilmember Simonsen, “yes”, Councilmember Douglass, “yes”, Deputy Mayor Lare, “yes”, Mayor
Beck, “yes”.

Res. #2011-221 Payment of Voucher, $60.00 (LT Rescue - CPR Certification Class - S Davis,
Police Dispatcher)

Councilmember Douglass motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember Simonsen.  The
resolution was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad, “abstain”,
Councilmember Simonsen, “yes”, Councilmember Douglass, “yes”, Deputy Mayor Lare, “yes”, Mayor
Beck, “yes”.

Res. #2011-222 Payment of Voucher, $1,500.00 (for clean up of  5  properties with cost to be
placed as lien on each property)

Councilmember Conrad motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Deputy Mayor Lare.   The
resolution was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad, “yes”, Councilmember
Simonsen, “yes”, Councilmember Douglass, “abstain”, Deputy Mayor Lare, “yes”, Mayor Beck, “yes”.

Ord. #2011-13, Ordinance Appropriating $26,142 From the Capital Surplus Fund for the
Acquisition of Two Vehicles, 2nd rdg. & public hearing (Purchase of 2 Ford
Focuses - fuel efficient 28/38 mpg to replace 3 high mileage 4WD vehicles)

The Clerk announced the ordinance was post and published according to law and copies were available in
the Clerk’s office.
Mayor Beck opened the meeting for comment on the ordinance.
There were no comments on the ordinance.
Councilmember Douglass motioned to adopt the ordinance, seconded by Councilmember Conrad.  The
ordinance was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad, “yes”, Councilmember
Simonsen, “yes”, Councilmember Douglass, “yes”, Deputy Mayor Lare, “yes”, Mayor Beck, “yes”.

Ord. #2011-14, Bond Ordinance Providing for Various Capital Improvements of the Township of
Lower, in the County of Cape May, New Jersey, Appropriating the Aggregate
Amount of $440,000 Therefor and Authorizing the Issuance of $400,000 Bonds
or Notes of the Township to Finance Part of the Cost Thereof, 2nd rdg & public
hearing 

The Clerk announced the ordinance was post and published according to law and copies were available in
the Clerk’s office.
Mayor Beck opened the meeting for comment on the ordinance.
There were no comments on the ordinance.

Page 3



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 1, 2011

Councilmember Douglass motioned to adopt the ordinance, seconded by Councilmember Simonsen.  The
ordinance was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad, “yes”, Councilmember
Simonsen, “yes”, Councilmember Douglass, “yes”, Deputy Mayor Lare, “yes”, Mayor Beck, “yes”.

Administrative Reports
Personnel Action Report

Council Comments
Councilmember Conrad said for everyone to enjoy the summer.   He thanked the Manager and Clerk for
the explanations of the resolutions on the agenda.  He said National Night Out would be the following
night.
Councilmember Simonsen said thank you to his special needs kids who worked on cleaning up the Cox
Hall Creek Management Wildlife Area.  He said they did a great job.
Deputy Mayor Lare said after Council received the confidential memo from the Solicitor regarding
several items he had a thought he would like Council to consider regarding the publication of the
Collective Bargaining Agreements and how they handled it.  He said he would like the Solicitor to
expand his scope in research and when they had Collective Bargaining Agreements to approve them in
ordinance form.  
Deputy Mayor Lare said it would allow for public comment on second reading.  He said it wouldn’t be
made public until passage after first reading so the union agreements wouldn’t be made public until after
a vote.  He said it would also give a two week review period.
Mayor Beck said he spoke to the Solicitor and it may be put on a work session to discuss it.  He said it
had been his feeling to let the public see what was about to be approved.   He said he was willing to look
at any suggestions from Council.  He mentioned having a work session before the negotiations.
Deputy Mayor Lare said the Manager could work with the Solicitor on it.
Mayor Beck mentioned the tax bills were mailed out and mentioned some of the upcoming activities in
the Township were National Night Out, Farmers Market, Coombs - Douglass run and Family Movie
Night.

Call to the Public

                                            Request to Change the Ordinance Regarding Farm Animals
Clare Nagel of 101 Shore Drive said she wanted to propose a change in the ordinance regarding farm
animals.  She reviewed the current ordinance and said she would like to see a certain  lot size for a small
flock of chickens.  She said she modeled her suggested changes according to the current Middle
Township Ordinance.  
Mayor Beck said they would look it over and get back to her.  He said there may be a reason for the lot
sizes. 
Manager Voll said he visited her home and she had six chickens kept in a clean environment and there
were no odors.
Mayor Beck said his concern was the next person that had them on a small lot size and didn’t take care of
them.

                                                              Traffic Regulations

Page 4



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 1, 2011

 Bob Walter of Florida Avenue said he had some safety concerns.  He said the bikes along the road were
not peddling  with traffic and he believed it was State law  they should.  He said he was behind a police
officer and he did nothing about it and there were three bikes going against traffic.  He said also when
people were walking they should be walking against traffic and they weren’t.
                                                                    
                                                                   Township Parking Lot
He questioned about exiting onto Bayshore Road.  He said allowing people to exit North and South onto
Bayshore Road was creating a liability for the Township for allowing people to cross traffic. 
Mr. Walter said it would be safer to bring them in from Bayshore Road and exit out the back of the lot.
Manager Voll said he would mention it to the engineer.

                                                                    Rescue Squad
Bob Weber of Cardinal Avenue said the last meeting the five minute rule was brought up and he might
have been some of the cause of that.  He said he had been coming back to the meetings and in May his
wife had put in an OPRA Request for correspondence between the Code Enforcement and Rescue Squad. 
He explained what he received were nine instances where Code Enforcement had gone out in ten days
and the matter was resolved and no further complaints were made.  
Mr. Weber said that didn’t seem to be the case with the issue he complained about.  He reviewed how the
issue  was handled and it took longer than it should have to get Code Enforcement out to the property.  He
said a memo had gone to the Manager from Code Enforcement outlining seven violations and Manager
Voll made a phone call instead of having violation notices sent.  He said three of the issues hadn’t been
resolved.
Mayor Beck said he thought a letter had gone out Friday.
Councilmember Douglass asked what were the three things that had not been resolved. 
Mr. Weber said there was a fence in the yard that was over 4' tall, the shed wasn’t allowed to be there and
there was a trailer there as well.    
Mayor Beck said they couldn’t argue about the letter that’s why it was sent Friday.
          
                                                               Five Minute Rule  
Councilmember Simonsen said Mr. Weber had the right at every meeting to say what he felt.  He said it
didn’t pertain to him or just this issue it was any issue and it just gave everyone a chance to speak.  He
said in his opinion the issue got heated and people felt passionate about it and that was understandable. 
He said as far as the five minute rule the idea was to just keep the meetings in a more orderly fashion.  

                                                                Rescue Squad
Mrs. Weber said now the letter had been sent what about the hole they dug that hadn’t been addressed.
Manager Voll said there would be a ten-day reinspection.  He said he took offense at Mr. Weber’s
comments.  He said he had been there since the situation first started and had been monitoring it and the   
Rescue Squad had been treated like any other citizen in trying to resolve the issues.  He said as it had
been said at a prior meeting they had kicked the horse enough, it was dead;  let it go.
Deputy Mayor Lare said he had been in the previous Manager’s Office when she made a call to the
Rescue Squad on a prior issue.  He felt the goal was to leave the emotion out of it.  He said in his opinion
the issue was not to solve the problem but to penalize them.  He said Mr. Weber’s started off the first
night by saying “nothing personal against the Rescue Squad” and he would hate to see if he did have a
personal issue with them.  He said everyone in the room should work together to resolve the issue.

Page 5



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 1, 2011

Deputy Mayor Lare said with 95% of the code violations they contact the people and tell them to cut their
grass.
Mayor Beck said there had been nine different issues with the Rescue Squad and within ten days it had
been resolved.  He said how did they get to discussing the same issue for three months.  He felt they had
created some of the problem.  
The discussion continued on how it could have been handled.
   
                                                             Council Policy
Fred Long of Cold Spring said in the Solicitor’s response to the Prosecutor’s letter it was mentioned that
formal guidelines would be set up.  He wanted to know what the status of the guidelines were?
Mayor Beck said he didn’t know of any area where they had been incorporated and asked was he
referring to the  policy manual?
Mr. Long said “yes”, were they going to be policies and did it require they be in resolution form.
Mr. Blaney said the Prosecutor’s Office said if they didn’t follow those guidelines they would be
prosecuted. 
Mayor Beck said they may need to do that.  He said the State Checklist also asked if Council had an
absentee policy and he said they may also need to address that.  He said there should be a section in the
Personnel Manual for Council.
                                                                   Township Manager
John O’Rourke of Main Street said the Manager had been out of order.  He said it had been said they
were asking questions to stump the Manager.  He said the Manager was paid $85,000.00 and if he
couldn’t answer a question, shame on them for appointing him.  He said Council had been out of order at
the meetings more than the residents.

                                                                      Redwood Avenue
Kathleen Gulla of Redwood Avenue said by the next meeting the horseshoe crabs should be gone and
wanted to thank Council in advance.  She said regarding how long it took the Rescue Squad with the
work it had taken her about a month to get a permit for work at her home.

Bob Rizzo of Mickles Run said he liked the explanations on the agenda and it eliminated a lot of
questions.  He asked if the Manager could give a report each month of what was going on in the
Township.  He said the Ponder Lodge fence along Bayshore Road needed to be fixed.   He said the
parking lot at Township Hall looked great.
Mr. Rizzo asked Council to do what was right for everyone involved and finish the Rescue Squad issue.
Manager Voll agreed 100% it was a great community. 
                                                         
                                               Cox Hall Creek Management Wildlife Area       
 He said he had called weekly to Lee Widjeskog from Fish and Wildlife about the broken fence.  He said
the only improvements there had been the sign was put up and Councilmember Simonsen and his students
had been cleaning it up.  He hoped to have a better report about the fence at the next meeting. 

Ruthie Dillon was thinking of moving here and as an observer nothing got resolved when adults acted
very childish.  

Page 6



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 1, 2011

Closed Session
Res. #2011-223 Resolution Providing for a Meeting Not Open to the Public in
 Accordance with the Provisions of the New Jersey Open Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A.  10:4-
12. (Labor Relations - Chief’s Contract, Land Acquisition - Report & Personnel - Police)
Councilmember Conrad motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember
Douglass.  The resolution was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,
“yes”, Councilmember Simonsen, “yes”, Councilmember Douglass, “yes”, Deputy Mayor Lare,
“yes”, Mayor Beck, “yes”.

Reopen
Councilmember Conrad  motioned to return to open session,  seconded by Councilmember
Douglass.  Council agreed to the motion by verbal “ayes”.

Res. #2011-180 Resolution Ratifying the Agreement Between the Township of Lower
 and Brian Marker, Chief of Police (July 1 2011 through June 30, 2014 - withdrawn from June
20th  agenda)
Councilmember Conrad  motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember
Douglass.  The resolution was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,
“yes”, Councilmember Simonsen, “yes”, Councilmember Douglass, “yes”, Deputy Mayor Lare,
“yes”, Mayor Beck, “yes”.

Res. #2011-224,  Appointment of Special Prosecutor For Police Disciplinary Matters 
Deputy Mayor Lare motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember Douglass. 
The resolution was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad, “yes”,
Councilmember Simonsen, “yes”, Councilmember Douglass, “yes”, Deputy Mayor Lare, “yes”,
Mayor Beck, “yes”.

There being no further comment, Deputy Mayor Lare motioned to adjourn the meeting, seconded
by Councilmember Douglass the meeting unanimously adjourned by verbal  “ayes” at 9:00 p.m.

__________________________ __________________________
           Mayor          Township Clerk

Approved: August 15, 2011

Page 7


















































































































